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PAYNE, MOORE & HERRINGTON, LLP
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Independent Auditor’s Report

The Honorable Jim Shapkoff, Jr., Mayor
And Members of the City Council
City of Leesvilie, Louisiana

Wa have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Gity of Leesville, Louisiana,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of
the City’'s primary government as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the City of Leesville, Louisiana’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards requirs that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the acceunting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

The financial statements referred to above inciude only the primary government of the City of Leesville,
Louisiana, which consists of all funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments, and cffices that
comprise the City’s legal entity. The financial statements do not include financial data for the City's legally
separate compaenent units, which accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
require to be reported with the financial data of the City's primary government. As a resuit, the primary
government financial statements do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the
reporting entity of the City of Leesville, Louisiana, as of June 30, 2005, and the changes in its financial
position and its cash flows, where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmenta! activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information for the primary govemment of the Clty of Leesville, Louisiana,
as of June 30, 2005, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable,
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
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PAYNE, MOORE & HERRINGTON, LLP

The Honorable Jim Shapkoff, Jr., Mayor
And Members of the City Council
City of Leesville, Louisiana

In accordance with Government Audifing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 19,
2005, on our consideration of the City of Leesville, Louisiana’s internal control over financial reporting and
onour tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in conjunction
with this report in considering the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information presented on pages 3
through 10 and 48 through 49 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
suppiementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the basic financial statements of the City of Leesville, Louisiana's primary government. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis
as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Govemments,
and Non-Profit Organizations (Schedule 4), and is not a required part of the basic financial statements of
City of Leesville, Louisiana’s primary government. The schedule of the expenditures of federal awards has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material raspects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
The unaudited schedule of insurance in force {(Schedule 5) is also presented for the purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The unaudited schedule of insurance
in force has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

fagre, Moo & Nerriimglon,

Cenrtified Public Accountants

LLp

r

December 19, 2005
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City of Leesville, Louisiana
Management's Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended Jurne 30, 2005

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Leesville's financial performance provides an overview of the
City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. Piease read it in conjunction with the City's
financial statements, which begin on page 11.

Financial Highlights

The City's new ¥z cent sales tax went inte effect in April 2004. During the fiscal year ending June 30,
2005, this ¥ cent sales tax generated approximately 1.2 million dollars, which was used to support
and operate both the police and fire depariments. The City also entered into a lease agreement to
purchase a 2003 Ferrara “Inferno” Chassis 100’ ladder truck for our Fire Department for $650,000.
The City has also begun construction of a new Fire Substation, which will cost $389,000 upon
completion.

The City issued $2,500,000 in Public Improvement Bonds financed by sales tax revenues, which will
be used for street renovations, drainage, parks and recreation, and to purchase new public works
equipment.

The City began a Street Renovation Project, funded by $1,800,000 in general obligation bonds
payable from ad valorem taxation, which entailes constructing, improving and resurfacing public
streets within the City limits. As of June 30, 2005, in excess of forty city streets have been
resurfaced.

In September 2004, the City along with our neighboring communities and Fort Polk sponsored “A
Louisiana Homefront Celebration” honering our military troops. 1In 2005, this event was the 1st
Piace winner in the Special Events of 2004 for the Community Relations Award for the United States
Army.

The City received federal and state grants totaling $611,111 to fund a project o overlay the runway,
apron and taxiway, and to rehabilitate lighting at the Leesville airport.

Using This Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities (on pages 11 and 12, respectively) provide information about the activities of the City
as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City’s finances. Fund financial statements start on page
16. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as
well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the City's operations in more
detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the City's most significant funds.

See independent auditor's repont.




City of Leesville, Louisiana
Management's Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Raporting on the City as a Whole

Our analysis of the City as a whole begins on page 6. One of the most important questions asked about the
City's finances is, “Is the City as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year's activities?” The
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a whole and
about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and
liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-
sector companies, All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of
when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City's net assets and changes in them, You can think of the City’s net
assets — the difference between assets and liabilities — as one way to measure the City’s financial health, or
financial position. Over time increases or decreases in the City’s net assets are one indicator of whether its
financial heaith is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other nonfinancial factors, however,
such as changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of the Gity’s roads, to assess the overall
health of the City.

in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two kinds of activities:

» Governmental activities —~ Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including police, fire,
public works, parks and recreation, and general administration. Sales {axes, property taxes,
franchise fees, and state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

« Business-type activities — The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover al! or most of the cost
of certain services it provides. The City's water and sewer systems are reported here.

Reporting the City's Major Funds

Our analysis of the City's major funds begins on page 8. The fund financial statements begin on page 16
and provide detailed information about the most significant funds — not the City as a whole. Some funds are
required to be established by state law and/or bond covenants. However, the City Council establishes many
other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal
responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, or other monay. The City's two kinds of funds — governmental
and proprietary — use different accounting approaches.

+ Governmental funds — Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on how money fiows info and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are
available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified
accrual accounting, which measures cash and alf other financial assets that can readily be
converted into cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the
City's general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund
information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be
spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs. We describe the relationship (or differences)
between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities} and governmental funds in a reconciliation accompanying the fund financial statements.

See independent auditor's report.




City of Leasville, Louisiana
Management's Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2005

» Proprietary funds — When the City charges customers for services it provides — whether to outside
customers or to other units of the City - these services are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that activities are reported in the Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the City's enterprise funds (a component of
proprietary funds) are the same as business-type activities we report in the government-wide
statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for proprietary
funds. We use an internal service fund (the other component of proprietary funds) to report activities
that provide services to the City's other programs and activities.

The City as 2 Whole

The following is a condensed summary of the City's net assets as of June 30, 2005 with comparative
information to enhance the user ability to evaluate cperating results of the City.

Table 1
Nat Assats
Governmanial Business-Type Total
2004 2008 2004 2005 2004 2005
Assets
Currant and other assets 3,019,439 4,832 556 718,454 748,799 4,637,933 5,581,355
Capital assets 12,411,945 14,428 809 11,141,086 11,025 635 23,553,031 25,452,344
Total Assets 16,331,384 19,259,365 11,859,580 11,774,334 28,190,964 31,033,699
Liabilities
Long term debt outstanding 3,217,212 6,038,168 3,958,121 3,901,555 7,275,333 9,937,723
Other Liabilities 413,722 497 108 817,988 166,783 _ 1,031,710 663,891
Total Liabilities 3,730,834 8533278 4576109 4 068 338 8.307,043 10,601,614
Net Asaets
Invested in capital assets, net 7.473,920 8,582,381 7,808,086 7,387,022 15,280,008 15,949,403
Restricted 2,222,108 3,173,087 96,846 76,371 2,318,954 3,249,458
Unresiricted {deficit) 2,904 422 970,621 {619,481) 262,603 2,284 961 1,233,224
Total Net Assets 12,600,450 12,726,089 7,283,471 7,705,996 19,883,921 20,432,085

Table 2 presented on the following page is a condensed summary of the changes in net assets for the year
ending June 30, 2005. As a whole the City’s net assets increased by $548,164 or 3%.

See independent auditor's report.



City of Leesville, Louisiana
Management's Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2006

Governmental Activities
Net assets of governmental activities increased by $125,639 or 1% due mostly to capital grants.
Business-type Activities

Net assets of business-type activities increased by $422,525, or 6%, mainly because of a decrease in
transfers from business-type activities to govemmental activities. Unrestricted net assets can be used to
finance the day-to-day activities of the City.

Tabla 2
Changes In Net Assets

Governmental Business-Type Total
2004 2005 2004 2008 2004 2005
Rgvenues
Program revenues
Charges for aervices 1,165,347 1,212,450 1,503,614 1,504 939 2,668,961 2717445
Operating grants 171,797 208,999 171,797 208,999
Capita) grants 108,378 649,096 202,682 205,271 312,060 854,367
General ravenues
Sales taxes 2427145 3448112 2,427,145 3448112
Other taxes 735,419 752,228 330,397 361,721 1,065,818 1,113,049
Other general revenues _73,5583 69,423 - 1884 2.018 15417 71.441
Total Revenues 4,882,639 8,340,308 2,038,557 2,074,009 6,721,196 8414317
Program Expenses
General government 739,050 981,247 739,050 981,247
Public safety 2,233,789 3,252,278 2,233,789 3,252,278
Public works 903,416 883,754 903,418 883,754
Economic developméent 557 247 542,086 557,247 542,086
Culture and recreation 308,946 57,721 308,846 357721
Interest on long-term debt 90,218 203,763 138,608 132131 228,826 335,894
Water B62,474 849,114 862,474 849,114
Sewer 626 480 564 058 526 450 554,059
Total Expenses 4832 666 6,220,849 1,627 542 1,645,304 6,460,208 7,866,153
Excess (Deficlency) {150,027) 119,459 411,015 428,705 260,988 548,164
Transfers 472,452 6,180 (472,452) (6,180) - -
Change in Net Assets 322,425 125,638 {61.437) 422,525 260,988 548,164
See independent auditor's report.
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Clty of Leesville, Louisiana
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Yeoar Ended June 30, 2005

Capital grants increased mostly due to federal and state funding received for improvements at the airport.
Sales taxes increased due fo the new sales tax to fund police and fire department operations. Program
expenses increased mainly because of a 25% across the board pay increase to city employees. This was
the first pay increase employees received in seven years.

The City’s Funds

As the City completed the year, its governmental funds, as presented in the balance sheet on page 16,
reported a combined fund balance of $4,419,931, for increase of $931,472 over the prior year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

QOver the course of the year, the City Council revised the budget several times as new information became
available, Overall there was a budgeted decrease in fund balance due to reduced transfers received from
the water and sewer funds.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

Atthe end of the fiscal year, the City had $25,452,344 invested in a broad range of capital assets, including
land, buildings and improvements, infrastructure {roads, bridges and drainage systems), water treatment
and distribution systems, and sewer collection and treatment systems. This amount represents a net
increase (including additions and deductions) of $1,899,313. Capital assets are summarized in the following
table:

Tabile 3
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

Governmental Business-Type Total
2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005
Land 228,856 278,856 157,249 157,249 386,105 436,105
Construction in progress 1,476,593 344 240 461,329 344 340 1,937,922
Bulldings and improvements 7,834,101 7.599,873 7,834,104 7,599,873
Piant and system 10,583,039 10,373,660 10,583,039 10,373,660
Equipment and vehicles 557,218 921,412 56,459 33,297 623677 954 709
Infrastructure 3,781,770 4 150,075 3,781,770 4,150,075
Totals 12,411,845 14,428,809 11,141,087 11,025,535 23,553,032 25,452 344

This year's major additions included $858,096 in vehicles and equipment and $1,359,604 in construction in
progress for street and water system improvements. During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2005, the City
issued $2,500,000 in pubiic improvement bonds to finance street and other public works improvements.

See independent auditor's report.



City of Leesville, Louisiana
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Debt

At year-end, the City had $9,937,723 in bonds, notes, and ather debt outstanding verses $7,275,333 last
year — an increase of 37% as shown in Table 4,

Table 4
Outstanding Deibit
Governmental Business-Type Total
2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2008
General Obligation Debt
{backed by the City)
General obligation bonds 2,380,000 2,245000 3,335,000 3,065,000 5,715,000 5,310,000
Compensated absences 155,580 191,740 19,588 33,269 175,168 225,009
Capitalized leases 288,758 843,002 288,753 843,002
Noles payable 32,874 16,426 71,787 341,513 104,661 357,939
Customer guaranteed deposits 187,748 209,773 187748 200,773
Revenue Bonds and Notes
{backed by specific taxes
and fees) - -
Sales tax revenus 460,000 2,740,000 450,000 2,740,000
Waler and sewer revenue 344,000 252,000 344,000 252,000
Totals 3,317,212 8,036,168 3,958,121 3,801,555 7.275333 9,937,723

New debt resulted mainly from issuing publfic improvement bonds of $2,500,000 for street improvements
and the capital lease of $650,000 for the new fire truck. In addition, notes payable were incurred to finance
acquisition of water system capital additions.

Future Outlook

The City's anticipates the construction of a new state of the art swimming pool, which will cost approximatety
$650,000. The facility will be an addition to the city’s recreation complex.

The City will continue renovating and resurfacing city streets from the proceeds of the $2,500,000 public
improvement bonds. The City also plans to purchase various public works equipment during the upcoming
year.

The City has been awarded a contract for street renovations through the Louisiana Community
Development Block Grant program in the amount of $500,000, which will fund the resurfacing and improving
of city streets located primarily within the city’s District 2.

The City has received a new tenant at the city’s northside industriai park. The company will manufacture
modular buildings and will be employ approximately 180 individuals.

The City expects its economic base to remain about the same.

See independent auditor's report.




City of Leesville, Louisiana
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Contacting the City’s Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with
a general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it receives. If

you have any questions about this report or need additional information, contact the City Administrator at the
City of Leesville, 101 West Lee Street, Leesville, Lovisiana or by telephone at 337-238-2444.

See independent auditor's report.
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City of Leesville, Louisiana
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2005

Exhibit A
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activitles Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents z 4,065,102 $ 69,496 3 4,134,598
Receivables, net 505,202 243,644 748,846
Intemnal balances 83,268 (93,268) -
Due from other governments 70,359 58,052 129,411
Prepaid expenses 25,328 - 25,328
Inventories 73,297 - 73,297
Restrictad cash and cash equivalents - 431,768 431,768
Deferred bond issuance costs - 38,107 38,107
Capital assets
Land and construction in progress 1,755,449 618,578 2,374,027
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 12,671,360 10,406,957 23,078,317
Total Assets 19,259,365 11,774,334 31,033,699
Liabilities
Accounts payable 407,744 128,587 536,331
Accrued interest 83,840 37,599 121,439
Other accrued expense 5,524 597 65,121
Long-term liabilities
Due within one year 612,677 368,000 980,677
Due in more than one year 5423 491 3,533,555 8,957,046
Total Liabilities 6,533,276 4,068,338 10,601,614
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 8,582,381 7,367,022 15,849,403
Restricted for
Capital projects 2,662,733 59,610 2,712,343
Debt service 520,354 - 520,354
Capital additions and contingencies - 16,761 16,761
Unrestricted 970,621 262,603 1,233,224
Totai Net Assets $ 12,726,089 $ 7,705,996 $ 20,432 085

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

13
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City of Leesville, Louisiana
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Balance Shest to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2005

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets
are different because:

Capital assets used in govemmental activities that are not current financial
resources and therefore, are not reported in the fund financial statement but
are reported in the governmental activities of the Statement of Net Assets.

Certain expenditures benefiting future periods are reported as deferred
charges in the Statement of Net Assets.

The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are not included in the
fund financial statement, but are inciuded in the governmental activities of
the Statement of Net Assets.

Some liabilities, (such as notes payable, capital lease contract payable, long-
term compensated absences, and bonds payable ), are not due and payable
in the current period and are not included in the fund financial statement but
are included in the governmentai activities of the Statement of Net Assets.

Interest on long-term debt is accrued in the Statement of Net Assets, but not
in the governmental funds.

Net Assets of Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Exhibit D

4,419,372

14,426,809

25,328

(25,412)

(6,036,168)

(83,840)

$

12,726,089
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City of Leesville, Louisiana
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activitles
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Exhibit F
Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 930,914

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities are different because:;

Governmental funds report outlays for capital assets as expenditures

because such outlays use current financial resources. In contrast, the

Statement of Activities reports only a portion of the outlay as expense.

The outlay is allocated over the assets' estimated useful lives as

depreciation expense for the period.
Capital outlays reported in the funds 2,987,453
Depreciation reported in the Statement of Activities (972,589)

Bond and other debt proceeds provide current financial resources to
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in
the Statement of Activities. {3,150,000)

Repayment of long-term debt is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement
of Aclivities. 467,204

An internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of

certain employee benefits {0 individual funds. The net revenues

{expenses) of the internal service fund are included in governmental

activities in the Statement of Activities. (11,347}

Certain timing differences exist between the recognition of revenue

and expenditures in the governmental funds and the recognition of

revenues and expenses in the Statement of Activities.
Insurance expense {39,383)
Interest expense {50,453)
Compensated absences {36,160)

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 125,639

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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City of Leesville, Louisiana

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2005
Exhibit G
Enterprise Funds
Sower System  Water System Internal Service
Fund Fund Total Fund
Assots
Current assets
Cash ang cash equivalents s - 3 460568 § 460,568 $ 3,043
Receivables - net 88,478 155,166 243,644 19,744
Due from other governments - 59,052 59,062 -
Duea from other funds - 2624 2624 -
Total Current Asseals 88,478 677,410 765,988 22,787
Noncurrent assets
Restricied cash and cash equivalents 385,030 66,738 431,768 -
Capital assets
Property, plant, and equipment 10,895,131 7,634,974 18,530,105 -
Less accumulaled depreciation (3,384,337) (4,140,233) (7.504,570) -
Deferred bond issuance costs 28,276 9.831 38,107 -
Total Noncumrent Assets 7,924 100 3,571,310 11,495,410 -
Total Assets 8,012,578 4,248,720 12,261,298 22,787
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Bank overdraft 391,072 - 301,072 -
Accounts payable 36,072 82 515 128,587 48,168
Due to gther funds 892 95,000 95,892 -
Accrued expenses/other cumment liabilities - 597 597 -
General obligation bonds and revenue bonds 4,630 45,572 50,202 N
Totals 432,666 233,684 666,350 48,199
Liabilities Payable from Restrictad Assets
Interest 32,716 4,883 37,599 -
General obligation bonds and revenue bonds 265,370 52,428 317,798 -
Totals 288,086 57.311 355,397 -
Noncurrent Liabilities
Customer guaranteed deposits - 209,773 209,773 ~
Compensated absences payable 8230 24,039 33,289 ~
General chligation bonds 2,560,000 - 2,560,000 -
General obligation refunding bonds 235,000 - 235,000 -
Revenue bonds - 154,000 154,000 -
Notes payable - 341,513 341,513 -
Tatal Noncurrent Liabilities 2,804,230 729 325 3,533,555 -
Total Liabilities 3,634,982 1,020,320 4,555,302 48,189
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,465,794 2.901,228 7,367,022 -
Restricted for
Construction 59,610 - 59,610 -
Capital additions and centingencies 7,334 9,427 16,781 -
Unrestricted (55,142) 317,745 262,603 (25412)
Total Net Assets {Deficit) $ 4477596 § 3228400 $ 7705996 3 {25,412)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Operating Revenuos
Charges for sales and services
Other
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expanses
Salaries
Employee benefits
Office oxpense
Supplies
Vehicle expense
Utilities/communications
Insurance
Claims incurred
Legai and other professional
Repairs and maintananca
Depreciation
Amortization
Other expenses
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenue (Expsnses)
Investment revenue
Ad valorem taxes
Interest expense and fiscal charges
Total Nonoperating Revanue (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers
Capital Contributions
Transfors In (Out)

Transfers in

Transfers {out}
Total Transtfers In (Out)

Change in Net Assats

Net Asssts, Beginning of Year

City of Leesville, Louisiana
Statement of Revenues, Expanses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Propriatary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2005
Exhibit H
Enterprise Funds
Sewsr System  Water System Internal Service
Fund Fund Total Fund
$ 469,161 $ 1035838 § 1504909 § 430,052
“ - - 27, 200
489,161 1,035,838 1,504,999 517,252
138,683 240,874 377,557 -
18,180 28,295 46,475 -
- 6,150 6,150 .
68,800 98,600 167.400 -
8,268 8,547 16,815 -
95,579 87,929 183,508 .
44,194 82,044 126,238 112,029
- - - 384,618
5,000 5,000 10,000 -
1,787 13,243 15,030 -
243,820 278,362 522182 -
5,065 - 5,065 -
365,683 70 36753 31,859
664,059 849,114 1,513,173 528 606
(194,898) 186,724 {8.174) (11,354)
1,750 268 2018 8
381,721 - 381,724 -
(99,762) {32, 369) {132,131} -
253,709 {32,101 231,808 8
68,811 154,623 223,434 {11,346)
- 205271 205,271 -
- a3 83 -
(6,263} - (6,263) .
(5,263) 83 (6,180) -
62,548 359,977 422 525 {11,348)
4,415,048 2,866,423 7.283.471 {14,066)
$ 4477596 § 3228400 § 7705996 § (25,412)

Net Assets, End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers
Other receoipts
Intemal activity - receipts from other funds
Payments to empioyees
Payments to vendors and others
Intemal activity - payments to other funds
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Actlivities
Net change in bank ovardraft
Transfers from {to) cther funds
Net Cash Provided (Used} by Moncapital
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capltal and Relatad
Financing Activities
Ad valorem {axas for capital debt service
Proceeds from capital debt
Capital contributions
Purchase or construction of capital assets
Principal paki on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and
Relaled Financing Aclivities

Cash Fiows from investing Activities
Interest received on operating funds
Net change in restricted cash
Net Cash Pravided (Used) by Investing Activitios

Not Increase (Decraase) Cash and
Cash Equivaisnts

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

City of Lessville, Loulsiana
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Yoar Ended June 30, 2005
Exhibit !
{Continued)
Enterprise Funds
Sower Systam  Watsr System Internal Service
Fund Fund Total Fund
3 470,569 $ 1,040,901 $ 1511470 $ .
- - - 231,580
- - - 452,827
{131,440) (232,435) (363,875) -
(241,346) (366,975) (608,321} (507 475)
(22,092) {90,028) {112,120} -
75,691 351,463 427,154 176,912
(25,242) - (25,242) {173,817
{6,263} B3 {8, 180) -
{31,505) 83 (31.422) (173,877
8,71 - 361,721 -
- 269,728 269,728 -
- 146,219 148,219 -
{6,560} {321,704) {326,374} -
(270,000} (92,000) (382,000) -
(102,135) (26,430} {128,565} -
{17,004 {24,269) (41.273) -
1,750 268 2,018 8
(28,932} (42,120) {71,052} -
(27.182) (41,852) {69,034) 8
- 285,425 285,425 3,043
- 175,143 175,143 -
$ - § 480588 § 460,568 5 3,043

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statemants.
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| Clty of Lesaviile, Loulsiana

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2005
Exhibit i
{Concluded)
Enterprisa Funds
Sewer System  Water System intornal Service
Fund Fund Total Fund
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Nt Cash Provided {Usad) by Operating Activitiss
Operating income (loss) s (194.898) 3 186,724 § (8.174) {11.354)
Adjustments to reconcile operating incoma {loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Cperating Activitles
Depreciation and amortization 248,885 278,382 527,247 -
Changes in assets and llabilitias
Recelvables 1,408 (16,964) (15,558) 167,135
Due from other funds - (2,842) (2,842) 211N
Accounts payable 45,230 {122,378) (107,148} -
Accrund expenses - (1,905} (1,905) -
Duea lo other funds (177) - (177 -
Custamer guaranteed daposits - 22,027 22,027 -
Compensated absences 5243 8,439 13,882 -
Nut Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Activities $ 75691 §% 351,463 § 427,154 $ 176,912

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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City of Leeasville, Louislana
June 30, 2005

Notes to Financlal Statements

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Leesville, Louisiana, (City) was incorporated by proclamation of the governor on
February 15, 1900, The City operates under a council-administrator form of government.

The accompanying financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. GAAP
includes all relevant GASB pronouncements. In the Government-Wide Financial Statements and the Fund
Financial Statements for the proprietary funds, Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989,
have been applied unless those pronocuncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in
which case GASB prevails.

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant of the City's accounting policies
are described below.

A. The Financial Reporting Entity

As mentioned above, the City of Leesville, Louisiana, is a municipal corporation governed by an
elected seven-member board. The accompanying financial statements present only the data of the primary
government.

A primary government is a legal entity or body politic and includes all funds, organizations,
institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that are notlegally separate. These financial statements do
not include the data of the component units necessary for reporting in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

B. Individual Component Units Not Included in this Report

The City has two component units, which are legally separate from the City. The voters of the City of
Leesville elect the City Marshal and the City Judge. This report does not include these component units.

1. The Leesville City Marshal is responsible for enforcing judgments of city court,
maintaining order within the city court, and collaction of city court fines,

2. The Leesville City Court is responsible for hearing court cases involving
viclations of city laws and ordinances and for rendering judgments thereon.

Complete financial statements for each of the two component units can be obtained from their
respective administrative offices.

Administrative Offices:

Leesville City Marshal Leesville City Court

P.O. Box 1486 P.O. Box 1486

Leesville, Louisiana Leesville, Louisiana
25




City of Leesville, Louisiana
June 30, 2005

Notes to Financial Statements

C. Related Organization

The Leesville Housing Autharity: The Authority is accountable to the City since the City Council
appoints the Authority's board members. However, since the City does not have the ability to impose its will
on the Authority and no financial benefit/burden relationship exists, the City is not considered financially
accountable for the Authority. Accordingly, the Autherity is not considered part of the City for financial
reporting purposes.

D. Basis of Presentation and Accounting

The accounting system is organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is defined as a
fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, which are segregated for the purpose of
carmying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations,
restrictions or limitations.

The City's funds are grouped into two broad fund categories and six generic fund types for financial
statement presentation purposes. Governmental funds include the general, special revenue, debt service
and capital projects. Proprietary funds include enterprise funds and internal service funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS)

The Government-Wide Financial Statements, "Sfatement of Net Assets” and “Statement of
Activities", report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary govemment. Govemmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately
from business-type activities, which primarily rely on fees and charges for support. Internal service fund
activity is eliminated to avoid “doubling up” revenues and expenses.

The Government-Wide Financial Statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This is the same approach used in the
preparation of the proprietary fund financial statements but differs from the manner in which governmental
fund financial statements are prepared. Therefore, governmental fund financial statements include
recongiliations with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the Government-Wide
Financial Statements and the statements for government funds. The primary effect of internal activity has
been gliminated from the Government-Wide Financial Statements.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between expenses (both direct and indirect) and
program revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the City and for each governmental
program. Direct expenses ara those that are specifically associated with a service, program or department
and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expenses are not allocated ta
governmental activities functions in the Statement of Activities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines,
and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the program and (b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program.
Revenues not classified as program revenue are presented as general revenues. The comparison of
program revenues and expenses identifies the extent to which each program or business segment is self-
financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.
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City of Leesvllle, Louisiana
June 30, 2005

Notes to Financial Statements

Net assets are reported as restricted when constraints placed on net assets are either externally
imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of
other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The net
assets restricted for other purposes result from special revenue funds, debt service funds, and capital
project funds with their respective net asset use.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements report detailed information about the City. The focus of governmental and
enterprise fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting by fund type. Each major fund
is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. The
internal service fund is presented in a single column on the face of the proprietary fund statements.

Governmental Funds

All governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting and the
current financial resources measurement focus. Under this basis, revenues are recognized in the
accounting period in which they become measurable and availabie. Expenditures are recognized in the
accounting period in which the fund fiability is incurred, if measurabie.

The major governmental funds are:

» General Fund — This is the City’s primary operating fund. This fund accounts for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

» Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund - This fund accounts for the proceeds of a one-percent (1%) City
sales and use tax. This sales tax was renewed July 1, 2005 for a period of twenty-five (25) years.

¢ Public Safety Special Revenue Fund — This fund accounts for the proceeds of a one-half of one
percent (1/2%) sales and use tax. This sales tax was effective April 1, 2004 for a period of twelve
years.

* 2004 Street improvement Capital Prajects Fund —This fund accounts for the receipt of the proceeds
of the Sales Tax Bonds, Series 2004 and subsequent expenditure of the funds,

» 2005 Sales Tax Bond Capital Projects Fund — This fund accounts for the receipt of the proceeds of
the Sales Tax Bond, Series 2005 and subsequent expenditure of the funds.

Revenue Recognition

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, the following
revenue sources are recognized when deemed both measurable (the amount of the transaction can be
determined) and available (collactible within the current period orwithin 60 days after year end and available
to pay obligations of the current period). This includes property taxes, franchise taxes, sales taxes, grants,
interest revenue, and charges for services. Fines, permits, and license revenues are not susceptible to
accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Relmbursements due for federally
and state funded projects are accrued as revenue at the time the expenditures are made, or, when received
in advance, deferred until expenditures are made.
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City of Leesvillg, Louislana
June 30, 2005

Notes to Financial Statements

Expenditure Recognition

The measurement focus on governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial
resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are measurable and are recorded when
the related fund liability is incurred. However, principal and interest on general fong-term debt, which has
not matured, are recognized when paid. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are not
recognized in the governmental funds.

Proprietary Funds

Ali proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. These funds account
for operations that are primarily financed by user charges. The economic resources measurement focus
concems determining costs as a means of maintaining the capitat investment and management control.
Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses when incurred. Allocations of costs, such as
depreciation, are recorded in proprietary funds. Unbilled service receivables are recorded at each year-end.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenuses of the
City's enterprise funds and internal service fund include charges to customers for sales and services, and
employer and employee insurance premiums. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and the internal
service fund include the costs of sales and services, administrative expenses, benefis paid and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenuss and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

The major proprietary funds of the City are the Sewer System Fund and the Water System Fund
which account for sewer and water services provided to residents of the City and general surrounding areas.

The City maintains one internal service fund, the Employee Benefits Insurance Fund, which is used
to account for the provision of hospitalizationvhealth insurance to employees of the City. A defined amount
is self insured and provision is made for excess coverage through premiums paid to a third party.

E. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Annual appropriated operating budgets of proposed expenditures and the means of financing them
are adopted for the general, special revenue, and debt service funds. Budgeted amounts are as originally
adopted, or as amended from time to time by the Council. Budgets are adopted consistent with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

F. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes amounts on hand and in demand deposits. For the purpose of the statement of cash

flows, managemant considers all highly liquid investments, if any, with a maturity of three months or less
when purchased to be cash equivalents.
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City of Leeasville, Louisiana
June 30, 2005

Notes to Financial Statements

G. internal Balances (Due From/To Other Funds)

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as internal balances on the
statement of net assets and as due from/to other funds in the fund financial statements.

Amounts reported in the fund financial stataments as interfund receivables and payables are
eliminated in the government-wide governmental and business-type activities columns of the statement of
net assets, except far the net residual amounts due between governmentai and business-type activities,
which are presented as internal balances.

H. Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market value, using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO)
meihod. Allinventories are accounted for in the General Fund as assets when purchased and recorded as
expenditures or expenses when consumed. nventory items consumed by other funds are recorded through
the interfund receivable/payable accounts.

I Restricted Assets

Certain proprietary fund assets are classified as restricted assets because their use is limited by
applicable bond covenants or by Council action. Various "debt service accounts" segregate resources
accumulated for debt service payments of bonds and certificates of indebtedness. "Capital additions and
contingencies accounts" are used to report resources set aside to meet unexpected contingencies or to
fund asset renewals and replacement for the water system. These resources may also be used for debt
service if funds are not otherwise available. "Construction accounts" are used to report funds received from
loan proceeds that are to be used for construction.

J. Capital Assets and Depraeciation

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund are
determined by its measurement focus. General capital assets are long-lived assets of the City as a whale.
When purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental furds.

in the Government-Wide Financial Statements, capital assets, including general capital assets, are
capitalized and depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Public domain capital
assets (infrastructure), which consist of roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage
systems, and lighting systems, are capitalized. The valuation basis for capital assets is historical cost, or
when historical cost is not available, estimated historical cost. Donated capilal assets are valued at
estimated fair value on the date of donation. The minimum capitalization threshold is any individual item
with a total cost greater than $1,000 or infrastructure capital assets with a total cost greater than $250,000.

Capital assets in the proprietary funds are capitalized in the fund which they are utilized. The

valuation basis for proprietary fund capital assets are the same as those used for general capital assets.
Donated assets are capitalized at estimated fair market value on the date donated.
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City of Leesville, Louisiana
June 30, 2005

Notes to Financial Statements

Interest is capitalized on proprietary fund assets acquired with tax-exempt debt. The amount of
interest to be capitalized is calculated by offsstting interest expense incurred from the date of the borrowing
until completion of the project with interest eamed on invested proceeds over the sams period. Mo interest
was capitalized during the current period.

K. Bond Issuance Costs

in governmental funds, bond issuance costs are recognized in the current period. Bond issuance
costs for proprietary fund types are deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds using the
bonds-outstanding method, which approximates the effective interest method. Bond issuance costs for
proprietary fund types are recorded as deferred charges.

L. Compensated Absences

Vested or accumulated leave is accrued in the period the liability is incurred. Compensated
absences expected to be financed from governmental funds are not reporied in the balance sheet of the
Fund Financial Statements; however, compensated absences are reported in the Statement of Net Assets
in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. Vested or accumulated leave of proprietary funds is
recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the benefits accrue to empioyees. No liability is
recorded for compensated absences that relate to future services or that are contingent on a specific event
that is outside the control of the employer and employee.

M. Long-term Liabilities

Long-term liabilities expected te be financed from governmental funds are not reported in the
Balance Sheet for the Fund Financial Statements; however, such long-term obligations are reported in the
Statement of Net Assets in the Govemment-Wide Financial Statements. Interest expense on long-term debt
is recognized in the Government-Wide Financial Statements as the interest accrues, regardless of when itis
due. Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in
those funds.

N. Supplemental Wages

Certain employees of the palice and fire departments receive supplemental wages from the State of
Louisiana. These supplemental wages are recognized as intergovernmental revenue and public safety
expenditures in the Public Safety Special Revenue Fund.

Q. Interfund Transactions

Quasi-extemnal transactions, if any, are accounted for as revenues or expenditures. Transactions
that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures, initially made from it that are properly applicable
to another fund, are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures in
the fund that is reimbursed. All other interfund transactions are reported as transfers.

P. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management ta make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

At June 30, 2005, the City's cash and cash squivalents consisted of demand deposits and interest-
bearing checking accounts as follows:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4065102 $ 69,496 $ 4,134,598
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 431,768 431,768
$ 4065102 $ 501,264 $ 4,566,366

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or
resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by
the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at
all times equal the amount on deposit with the agent bank.

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's
deposits may not be retumed. The City follows state law requirements for its custodial credit risk policy. As
of June 30, 2005, the City’s bank balance of $4,741,266 was not exposed to custodial credit risk in that
$673,827 was insured and $4,067,339 was collateralized by securities held by pledging banks in the City’s
name.

3. Receivables
Receivables as shown in the Statement of Net Assets, at June 30, 2005, consist of the following:

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Totals

Accounts .

Uncollected cycle billings % - % 205,445 § 205,445

Estimated billings between cycles - 77,039 77,039
Other 89,859 - 89,858
Sales taxes 349,510 - 349,510
Franchise taxes 65,833 - 65,833
Gross receivables 505,202 282,484 787,686
Allowance for doubtful accounts - {38,84D) (38,840)
Net Receivables $ 505,202 $ 243644 $ 748,846

Receivables arising from utility services provided to customers consist of uncollected billings
rendered customers on manthly cycle billings and estimated services provided customers between billing
cycles. The allowance for doubtful accounts represents the estimated uncollectible amounts at June 30,
2005.
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4. Due From Other Governments

At year-end, due from other governments consisted of the following:

Governmental Activities
State
Local
Business-type Activities
State
Total

5. Due From/To Other Funds and Transfers

$ 36,756
33,603

59,052

$ 129,411

Amounts due from and to other funds as reported in the Fund Financial Statements, at June 30,

2005, consist of the following:

Due To Fund Due From Fund

General Fund Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund
General Fund Other Governmental Funds
General Fund Public Safety Fund

General Fund Sewer System Fund

Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund Water System Fund

Other Governmental Funds Other Governmental Funds
Water System Fund General Fund

Amount
$ 6,523
8
9,228
892
95,000
50,000
2,624
$ 164,275

These balances represent charges for goods and services between funds. The balances are settled

periodically. The amounts here represent activity since the last settlement.

Transfers, for the year ending June 30, 2005, shown in the Fund Financial Statements were as

follows:

Transfers in Transfers out

General Fund Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund
Generat Fund Other Governmental Funds
Public Safety Special Revenue Fund Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund
Other Governmental Funds Generat Fund

Other Governmental Funds Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund
Other Governmental Funds Sewer System Fund

Water System Fund Other Governmental Funds

Amount
$ 436696
6,000
1,121,000
87,747
292 752
6,263
83
$ 1,950,541

The transfers are movements of money from one fund to another. These can be required by law or
merely serve as a means fo finance activities in the receiving fund. The transfers are not loans, i.e., the

receiving fund does not pay it back.
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6. Restricted Assets

At June 30, 2005, restricted assets of the Water and Sewer System Enterprise Funds consisted of

cash and cash equivalents as follows:

Sewer Water
System System Total
Construction $ 56,610 $ - % 59,610
Ad valorem bonds debt service 265,418 - 265,418
General obligation bonds debt service 32,668 - 32,668
Revenue bonds debt service - 57,311 57,311
Capital additions and contingencies 7.334 9,427 16,761
$ 365030 $ 66738 3% 431,768
7. Capital Assets and Depreciation
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2005, was as follows:
Balance Balance
July 1, 2004 _Increases Decreases June 30, 2005
Governmental Activities
Assets not being depreciated
Land and land improvements $ 228856 % 50,000 $ - % 278,856
Construction in progress 1.476,593 - 1,476,593
Total Assets not Being Depreciated 228,856 1,526,583 - 1,755,449
Other capital assets
Buildings and improvements 10,047,161 5,220 - 10,052,381
Equipment and vehicles 3,284 411 851,506 - 4,135,917
Infrastructure 18,583,497 604,133 - 17,187,630
Total Other Capital Assets 29,915,069 1,460,859 - 31,375,028
Accumulated depreciation
Buildings and improvements {2,213,060) (239,448) - (2,452,508)
Equipment and vehicles (2,717,193) {497,312) - (3,214,5085)
Infrastructure {12.801,727) {235,828) - (13,037.555)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (17,.731,980) (872,588) - {18,704.568)
Other Capital Assets, Net 12,183,089 488,271 - 12,671,360
Capital Assets, Nel $ 12,411,945 3 2,014,864 % - § 14,426,809
Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:
Governmental Activities
General government $ 19,406
Public safety 438,553
Public works 40,007
Culture and recreation 70,393
Economic development 404 229
Total Depreciation Expense for Govemmental Activities $ 972,588
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Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful

lives:
Buildings and improvements 20 - 40 years
Equipment and vehicles 5-15years
Infrastructure 20 - 40 years
Balance Balance
July 1, 2004 Increases Decreases  June 30, 2005
Business-type Activities
Assets not being depreciated
Land 3 157,249 § - § - $ 157,249
Construction in progress 344 340 400,040 (283,051) 461,329
Total Assets not Being Depreciated 501,589 400,040 {283,051) 618,578
Other capital assets
Plant and system 16,982,161 283,051 - 17,265,212
Equipment and vehicles 639,725 6,590 - 646,315
Total Other Capital Assets 17,621,886 289,641 - 17,911,527
Accumuiated depreciation
Plant and system {6,399,122) (492,430) - (6,891,552)
Equipment and vehicles (583,266) (29.752) - {613.018)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (6,982 388) (522 182) - (7,504 570)
Other Capital Assets, Net 10.639,498 {232.541) - 10,406,957
Capital Assets, Net $ 11141087 $ 167,489 § (283,051) $ 11,025,535
Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:
Business-type Activities
Sewer $ 243,820
Water 278,362
Total Depreciation Expense for Business-type Activities 3 522,182
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated usefu!
lives:
Production and distribution systems 25 - 50 years
Buildings and improvements 10 - 25 years
Equipment and vehicles 3-8years
8. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft or damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City purchases commercial
insurance as set forth in the following table. Settled claims did not exceed this commercial coverage for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2005.
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Limits of
Coverage
Workmen's compensation Statutory
Auto liability $ 500,000
Caommercial general liability 500,000
Public officials’ errors and omissions liability (deductible $5,000) 500,000
Law enforcement officers' liability (deductibie $5,000) 500,000
Airport liability
Sale of aircraft fuel and oil products 22,000
Premises medical — par person 1,000
Fire damage per occurrence 50,000
Hanger keepers per aircraft (deductible $2,500) 200,000
Hanger keepers per occurrence (deductibie $2,500) 500,000
City-ownad buildings and equipment - fire, lightning,
and extended coverage (deductibla $1,000) 6,624,479
City owned computers and scheduled equipment (deductible $500) 299,611
Wastewater treatment plant — fire, lightning, and extended coverage 1,636,000
Mobile home and adjacent structures — comprehensive (deductible $250) 9,500

The City covers all other losses, claim settlements, and judgments from Generail Fund resources.
The City currently reports all of its risk management activities in its General Fund. Claim expenditures and
liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be
reasonably estimated.

The City is party to legal proceedings involving suits filed against the City for various reasons. Some
of these suits claim damages that are material in amount. The amount of losses, if any, that may arise from
these suits cannot be reasonably estimated. Management does not believe that the City is exposed to any
material losses not covered by insurance. No provision for losses is included in the financial statements.

9. Empioyee Benefits Insurance

The City maintains an internal service fund to finance employee hospitalization/health insurance.
Resources accumulated for health coverage in the trust are accounted for in the Employee Benefits
Insurance Fund (an internal service fund). Under this program, the Employee Benefits Internal Service
Fund normally provides coverage for a maximum of $15.000 for each covered employee's (and
dependent's, if applicabie) qualifying health claims. The Fund maintains an aggregate retained loss per plan
month. The Fund purchases commercial insurance for health claims in excess of coverage provided.
Under the terms of the agreement, the net assets of the Fund may only be used to provide employee
benefits.
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All funds of the City and covered employees participate in the program and make payments to the
Employee Benefits Insurance Fund. The claims liability of $48,199 reported in the Fund at June 30, 2005, is
based upon GAAP, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of
the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the
financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Changes in the Fund's
claims liability amount in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2005, were as follows:

Balance, beginning of year $ 27,068
Current year claims 405,748
Claim payments {384,618)
Balance, end of year $ 48,199

10. Long-term Liabilities

Governmental activities long-term liabilities are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit
of the City. The City has incurred these liabilities to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of
major capital additions, or to refund general obligation liabilities previously issued for these purposes. In
addition, the City's obligation relative to the governmental funds' liability for compensated absences is
reported as a governmental activities long-term fiability.

The City has issued two types of revenue bonds. The first type is utility revenue bonds whereby the
City pledges income derived from the acquired or constructed assets to pay debt service. This long-term
debt is reported in the business-type activities. The second type is sales tax revenue bonds whereby the
City has pledged revenue from specifically dedicated sales tax collections to pay debt service and is
reported as governmental activities fong-term liabilities.
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A summary of long-term debt, as of June 30, 2005, follows:

Mafturity Interest Business-type Governmaental
Dates Rates Activities Activities
Governmental activities
General obligation
Sales tax revenue bonds
Refunding Bonds, Series ST-2002  08/01/2005 0.104.50% % $ 240,000
Pubtic Improv. Bonds, Series 2005 08/01/2020 3.10-4.25% 2,500,000
General obligation bonds
Refunding Bonds, Series 2002A 08/01/2012 4.95% 215,000
Refunding Bonds, Series 2002B 08/01/2012 0.10-6.50% 315,000
General Obligation, Series 2004 03/01/2019 4.40-3.63% 1,715,000
Compensated absences 191,740
Capitalized leases
Fire Equipment {2005) 08/16/2014 4.70% 650,000
Police Equipment (2004) 07/18/2006 4.00% 61,089
Public Works Department
Equipment {2003) 11/10/2009 4.25% 131,913
Notes payable
Economic Development (2002) 05/30/2006 None 16,428
Business-type activities
Enterprise Funds
Utilities System Reovenue Bonds
1998 refunding 04/01/2008 7.25-7.75% 252,000
Notes payable
Utility Relocation Open Ended None 341,513
General obligation bonds
Sewer System Improvements 03/15/2015 2.95% 2,800,000
Refunding Bonds, Series 2002C 08/01/2012 0.10-5.50% 265,000
Customer guaranteed depasits 209,773
Compensated absences 33,269
Totals 3,901,555 6,036,168
Current portion (368.000) (812,677)
Totals $ 3533555 3 5423491

During the year ended June 30, 2005, the following changes occurred in governmental activities
long-term liabilities:

Balance Balance
07/01/04 Additions (Reductions) __ 06/30/05
Governmantal Activities Long-Term Debt

Sales tax revenue bonds $ 460000 $ 2,500,000 $ (220,000) $ 2,740,000
General obligations 2,380,000 - {135,0000 2,245,000
Compensated absences - net 155,580 36,160 - 191,740
Capitalized leases 288,758 650,000 (95,756) 843,002
Notes payable 32,874 - (16,448) 16,426
Totals $ 3,317,212 § 3,186,180 $ (467,204) $ 6,036,168
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Balance Due within  Due in more
06/30/05 one vear _ than one vear
Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt

Sales tax revenue bonds $ 2740000 $§ 315000 $ 2425000
General obligations 2,245,000 140,000 2,105,000
Compensated absences - net 191,740 - 191,740
Capitalized leases 843,002 141,251 701,751
Notes payable 16,426 16,426 -
Totals $ 6036168 $ 612677 $§ 5423491

The annual requirements to amortize outstanding governmental activities long-term debt excluding
compensated absences are as follows:

Principal Interest

Yaar ended June 30, Payments Payments Total

2006 $ 612677 $ 274328 § 887,005
2007 358,827 214,865 573,692
2008 372,661 199,784 572,445
2009 396,608 183,497 580,105
2010 396,487 166,118 562,605
2011-2021 3,707,168 764.667 4471.835

$ 5844428 $ 1,803,259 $ 7,647,687

During the year ended June 30, 2005, the following changes occurred in business-type activities
long-term liabilities:
Balance Balance
07/01/04 Additions _  (Reductions) _ 06/30/05

Business-type Activities Long-Term Debt

Revenue bonds $ 344000 § - % (92000y $§ 252,000

Notes payable 71,787 269,726 - 341,513

General obligations 3,335,000 - (270,000) 3,065,000

Compensated absences - net 19,588 13,681 - 33,269

Customer guaranteed deposits - net 187,746 22027 - 209,773

Totals $ 3958127 § 305434 $ (382,000) $ 3,901,555

Balance Due within  Due in more

06/30/05 oneyear _thanoneyear

Business-type Activities Long-Term Debt $ 3901555 $ 368,000 $ 3,533,555
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The annual requirements to amortize outstanding business-type activities long-term debt exciuding
customer guaranteed deposits, notes payables, and compensated absences are as follows:

Principal Interest
Year ended June 30, Payments Payments _  Total
2006 $ 368000 $ 114,098 $ 4820098
2007 385,000 98,440 483,440
2008 339,000 81,817 420,817
2009 305,000 68,962 373962
2010 310,000 59,385 369,385
2011-2015 1,610,000 145,050 1,755,050

$3317,000 $ 567,752 § 3,884,752

Business-type Activities Note Payable: On July 23, 2003, the City entered into an agreement with the
Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development for utility relocation assistance funding. Issuance
of future permits to the City by the Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development for location of
additional longitudinal facilities within any state owned right of way is contingent upon repayment of this
funding. The City must show a good faith effort to repay the debt by making annual payments to the
Department of Transportation and Development of 5% of its gross income or 10% of its outstanding utility
relocation assistance funding debt. The first payment must be made within one year of the date of invoicing
of the City by the Department of Transportation and Development, and issuance of permits will remain
suspended untit the first payment is made. The City’s payments are due by January 15 of each year. As of
June 30, 2005, the City incurred $341,513 in funding from this agreement. The relocation project was not
finalized and invoicing to the City by the Department of Transportation had not cccurred as of June 30,
2005.

General Obligation Bonds, Series 1995 of the City of L eesville and General Obligation Bonds, Series

1995, of Sewer District No. 3 of the City of Leesville: The material provisions of these bond covenanis
are as follows:

1. In compliance with the special election held on November 8, 1994, the City shall levy and collect
annually ad valorem taxes in an amount sufficient to pay, when due, principal and interestonthe
bonds. The tax shall be expended only for the purpose of paying promptly when due the
principal and interest on the bonds.

2. The City will, in accordance with prudent wastewater utility treatment practice, (i} at all time
operate the properties of its System in an efficient manner, (i) maintain the System in good repair
working order and operating condition, and (jii} from time to time make all necessary and proper
repairs, renewals, replacements, additions, betterments, and improvements with respect to its
System so that at all times the business carried on in connection therewith shall be properly and
advantageously conducted.

3. The City will keep accurate records and accounts for the System separate and distinct from its
other records and accounts in accordance with generally accepted government accounting
standards,
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The City will establish a user charge system to assure that each recipient of wastewater
treatment services will pay a proportionate share of the costs of operation and maintenance,
including any necessary replacement of portions of the System.

There shall be established a separatsly identifiable fund or account to be designated the General
Obiigation Bond Sinking Fund. All monies from the collection of the ad valorem taxes shall be
used solely to pay principal of and interest on the bonds.

There shail be established a separately identifiable fund or account to be designated the Sewer
System Renewal and Replacement Fund. There shall be transferred to this fund, on or before
the twentieth (20th) day of each month of each year, beginning no later than the first fuli month
after the loan closing, an amount equal to five percent (5%) of net revenues collected in the prior
calendar month until the balance in the renewal and replacement fund equais to $75,000. All
monies in the renewal and replacement fund may be drawn on and used by the System for the
purpose of paying the costs of any unusual and extraordinary maintenance and any
improvements to the System, which will either enhance its revenue producing capacity or
provide a higher degree of service.

Viotation of General Obligation Bonds, Series 1995 of the City of Leesville and General Obiigation
Bonds, Series 1995, of Sewer District No. 3 of the City of Leesville Covenants:

1,

Funds were not transferred to the Sewer Systern Renewal and Replacement Fund in accordance
with the agreement. At year-end, cumulative additions to the reserve were approximately
$51,007 less than the amount required by the bond indentures.

Water System Refunding Series 1998 Bonds: The material provisions of water system refunding
bond covenants are as follows:

1.

The City will establish a rate structure sufficient to pay the necessary operating expenses,
principal, and interest on the bonds. Revenues after paying operating expenses must be at least
120% of the largest amount of principal and interest maturing in any future fiscal year.

The City will transfer monthly to a debt service sinking fund one - sixth (1/6) of the next interest
payment due and one - twelfth (1/12) of the next principal payment due.

The City will transfer monthly to the contingency fund an amount equal to five percent of the
amount transferred to the sinking fund. Monies in this fund may be used for extensions,
additions, improvements and replacements, and to pay principal and interest if funds are not
otherwise available.

After funding necessary operations, sinking fund requirements, and contingency fund
requirements, any remaining funds may be used for any lawful purpose of the City.

Violations of the Water System Refunding Bonds, Series 1998 Covenants:

1.

Monthly sirking fund transfers were not made as required by the agreement for July 2004 through
December 2004 and June 2005. In February 2005, a $60,000 transfer was made to the sinking
fund causing the account balance to be in excess of the requisred balance. At June 30, 2005, the
sinking fund remained in excess of the required balance.
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Monthly transfers were not made to the contingency fund as required by the agreement. At June
30, 2005, a deficit of $6,427 existed in the contingency fund.

Sales Tax Revenue Refunding. Series ST-2002 Bonds: The material provisions of sales tax revenue
refunding bond covenants are as follows:

1.

3.

The bonds and interest thereon are payable from the pledge and dedication of the City's one-
percent {1%) sales tax.

The City will transfer monthly to a debt service sinking fund one - sixth {1/6) of the next interest
payment due and one - twelfth (1/12) of the next principal payment due.

Parity bonds may be issued if certain conditions are met.

Violations of Sales Tax Revenue Refunding, Series ST-2002 Bond Covenants:

1.

Monthly transfers to the sinking fund as required by the covenants were not made. Periodic
transfers were made to the sinking fund. At June 30, 2005, the sinking fund was in excess of the
required balance.

Sales Tax Revenue Public Improvement, Series 2005 Bonds: The material provisions of sales tax
revenue public improvement bond covenants are as follows:

1.

Vio

1.

The City will maintain a sales tax bond sinking fund sufficient in amount to pay promptly and fully
the principal of and interest on the bonds by transferring from the sales tax fund monthiy
payments on or befare the 20" day of each month commencing August 2005 a sum equal to
one-sixth (1/6) of the next interest payment due and one-twelfth (1/12) of the next principal
payment due.

The City will establish a sales tax bond reserve fund by transferring, immediately upon delivery
of the bonds from bond proceeds, a sum equal to the lesser of (1} 10% of the original principal
proceeds of the bonds or (2) the highest combined principal and interest requirements for any
succeeding bond year on the bonds.

lations of Sales Tax Revenue Public Improvement, Series 2005 Bond Covenants:

The Cily's sales tax bond reserve fund was not established at the required amount immediately
upon delivery of the bonds from bond preceeds. Periodic deposits were made to the account
during the fiscal year; however, at June 30, 2005 a deficit of $201,130 existed in the sales tax
bond reserve fund.
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11.  Supplemental Pay

Certain empioyees meeting stalutory qualifications in the fire and police departments receive
supplemental pay directly from the State of Louisiana. This supplemental pay in the amount of $102,580 is
recognized as intergovernmental revenue and expenditures in the following public safety departments:

Police $ 62,980
Fire ———_39.800
$ 102,580

12.  Dedication of Proceeds - Flow of Funds - City Sales and Use Tax

Beginning April 1, 2004, the City was authorized to levy and collect a one-half of one percent (1/2%)
sales and use tax for a period of twelve years. Proceeds of the 2005 one-half of one percent (1/2%) City's
sales and use tax are dedicated and used solely for the purpose of improving, operating, and maintaining
the public safety services within the City of Leesville, specifically:

a.  To provide funds to acquire necessary police and fire protection equipment and other facilities
so as to increase the level of services and protection in the City.

b.  To provide funds for salary increases for police and fire departments personnel, including
benefits, so as to maintain a consistent level of experience and training within saig
departments.

On September 18, 2004 a special electicn was held whereby a one percent (1%) sales and use tax
was renewed effective July 1, 2005 for a period of twenty-five (25) years. The revenues from this sales tax
are to be dedicated and used in the following order for the purpose of constructing, improving, extending,
and maintaining (1) streets, sidewalks, bridges, drains, subsurface drainage, sewers and sewerage disposal
works, (2) fire department stations and facilities, and (3) public parks and recreational facilities, and
purchasing and acquiring the necessary land, equipment and furnishings for any of the aforesaid public
works, improvements and facilities.

13. Public Employees’ Retirement Systems

The City contributes to two statewide cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit public employee
retiroment systems. These consist of the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana
{(MPERS) and the Firefighters' Retirement System (FRS).

MPERS: Membership is available for all full-time police officers employed by the City, provided they
meet statutory criteria. Ay member is eligible for normal retirement benefits after he has been a member of
the System for one (1} year, if he has twenty-five (25} years of creditable service at any age, or if he has
twenty (20) years of creditable service and is age fifty (50), or has twelve (12) years of creditable service and
is age fifty-five (65). Benefit rates are three and one-third percent (3 1/3%) of final compensation per
number of years of creditable service not to exceed one hundred percent (100%). State law establishes
benefit and contribution requirements. MPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System, P. O. Box 94095, Baton Rouge, LA 70804-8095.
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Members are currently required to contribute seven and one-half percent (7 1/2%}) of their annual
salary to the system, including supplemental pay. The City contributes an actuarially determined rate,
presently set at twenty-one and one-half percent (21 1/2%) of the member's salary, including supplemental

pay.

FRS: This Planis a defined benefit pension plan covering firemen employed by 2 municipality, parish,
or fire protection district of the State hired after December 31, 1979. Employees with twenty (20) or more
years of service who have attained age fifty (50), empioyees who have twelve (12) years of service who
have attained age fifty-five (55), or employees who have twenty-five (25) years of service at any age are
entitied to annual pension benefits equal to three and one-third percent (3 1/3%) of their average final
compensation based on the thirty-six (36) consecutive months of highest pay muitiplied by their total years
of service, not to exceed one hundred percent (100%). Employees may elect to receive their pensicn
benefits in the form of a joint and survivor annuity. f employees terminate before rendering twelve (12)
years of service, they forfeit the right to receive the portion of their accumulated plan benefits attributable to
their employer's contributions. Benefits are payable over the employees' lives in the form of a monthly
annuity. State law establishes benefit and contribution requirements. FRS issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financiat statements and required supplementary information. Thatrepart may
be obtained by writing to Firefighters’ Retirement System, 3100 Brentwood Drive, Baton Rouge, LA 70809.

Members are currently required to contribute eight percent (8%} of their annual salary, including
supplemental pay to the Plan. The City contributes an actuarially determined rate, presently at twenty-four
percent (24%) of the member's salary, including supplementa) pay.

Required contributions: The City made the following required contributions to the various pension
plans:

Year Endin MPERS FRS Totals
06/30/05 $ 75154 $ 87171 % 162,325
06/30/04 49,810 23,366 73,176
06/30/03 29,748 27,335 57,083
06/30/02 35.840 21,737 57,377

In April 2005, the City was required to make additional contributions to the Firefightars' Retirement
System as the result of a lawsuit. The additional contributions totaled $32,97Q, which includes interest.

14. Defined Contribution Plan

The City sponsars a defined contribution pension plan (the Plan) to provide benefits at retirement to all
fuli-time employees who elect {o participate. Public Empioyees Benefit Services Corporation administers
the Plan. AtJune 30, 2005, there were 22 participants in the Plan. Plan members are required to contribute
6.3% of their covered salary. The City is required to contribute 9% of the participant's covered salary. Plan
provisions and contribution requirements are established by and may be amended by the City Council.
Participant contributions were $40,924 for the year ending June 30, 2005. Employer contributions were
$58,726. Participant and employer contributions are recognized in the period that the contributions are due.
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City of Leesville, Louisiana
Juneg 30, 2005

Notes to Financial Statements

15. Compensation Paid to Mayor and City Council

In accordance with the requirements of the Office of the Legis!ative Auditor, State of Louisiana, the
following report reflects compensation paid to members of the City Council, City of Leesville, for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2005.

Mayor James S. Shapkoff, Jr. $ 12,000

Council Members
Steve Kennedy 6,960
Milton D. Dowd 6,960
William M. Elliott 6,670
Patricia Martinez 6,670
Joseph P. McKee 6,960
Alice F. Guess 6,960

16. Contingencies

For many years, the City had a verbal understanding with its engineering firm that the firm would
accept as payment for services received only those engineering fees approved for payment by the grantor
agencies on certain projects. During the year ended June 30, 2001, the engineering firm requested payment
of fees totaling approximately $190,000 in excess of those approved by the grantor agencies on these
projects, which were completed from 1997 through 1999. The City has made payment on these fees in prior
years. The amount of fees currently owed is $168,326; however, the ultimate amount, if any, to be paid to
the engineering firm cannot be determined at this time.

17.  Concentration of Risk

The City received 37.09% of its sales tax révenue from ona merchant.
18. Accumulated Deficit - Empioyee Benefit Insurance Fund

The City funded the accumulated deficit in the Employee Benefits Insurance Internal Service Fund
subsequent to June 30, 2005 with additional employer contributions from the various City departments
participating in the internal service fund.
19.  Ad Valorem Taxes

Ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of each year. Taxes are
levied by the City hormally on November 15 and are due on December 1. Billed taxes become delinquent
on January 1 of the following year. Revenues from ad valorem taxes are budgeted in the year billed. The

City bills and collects its own property taxes using the assessed values determined by the tax assessor of
Vemon Parish.




City of Leesville, Louisiana
June 30, 2005

Notes to Financlal Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2005, taxes of 22.77 mills were levied on property with assessed
values totaling $28,954,020 and were dedicated as follows:

General majntenance purposes 5,16 mills
Street improvements 5.45 mills
Debt service 12.16 mills

Total taxes levied were $677,626. Substantially all ad valorem taxes were collected prior to the end
of the current fiscal year, except for adjudications, which are considered not cotlectable, and, therefore, are
not recorded as a receivable at year-end.

20. Other

GASB 45 Implementation

In June 2004, The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) approved Statement No. 45,
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postretirement Benefits other than Pensions. This
new pronouncement provides guidance for local governments in recognizing the cost of retires health care,
as well as any "other” post employment benefits (other than pensions).

Government-Wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The new pronouncement will cause the govemment-wide
financial statements to recognize the cost of providing retiree health care coverage over the life of the
employee, rather than at the time the health care premiums are paid. Annually, the unfunded actuarial
accrued liability will be reported in the government-wide financial statements. However, the UAAL will not
be reported in the individual fund statements that use the modified accrual basis of accounting.

The City will implement the provisions of GASB Statement No. 45 along with the required note
disclosures for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2009.
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City of Leasvilis, Louislana

General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Endad Juna 30, 2008
Schedule 1
Variance with
Final Budget
Bud Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
Revenues
Taxes $§ S43700 § 581000 § 564936 § (26,064}
Intergovernmental 163,385 79175 108,730 29,5585
Faes, commissions, and finas 150,000 154,000 169,349 15,349
Licenses and permits 338,700 394,000 392,805 (1.195)
Charges for services 91,500 79,150 68,714 (10.436)
Investment eamings - 60 80 -
Miscellaneous 82,500 111,426 104,251 (7.175)
Total Revenues 1,369,785 1,408,811 1,408,845 34
Expenditures
Current
General govemment 620,732 716.498 718,047 (1,548)
Public safety 61,745 61,776 82,038 (260)
Public works 829,100 874,385 898,042 (23,857)
Economic davelopment 130,695 110,446 120,727 {10,281)
Capital outiay 32,815 32,815 3,000 29,815
Debt service
Principal 16,450 16,450 43,040 {26,590)
Interest and other charges - - 68,223 {6,223)
Total Expenditures 1,691,637 1,812 370 1.851,115 (38,745)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures {321,752) {403 550) (442,270) (38.711)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 406,000 441,000 442 638 1,696
Transfers out {79,560) (86,715} (87.747) (1,032)
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses 326,440 354 285 354,549 664
Net Change in Fund Balsnces 4,688 (49,274) (87.321) (38,047)
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 87,321 87,321 87,321 -
Fund Balances, End of Year 3 92009 $ 38,047 $ . (38,047)

See independent auditor's report.
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Clty of Leesville, Louisiana
Sales Tax Special Ravenue Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Schedule 2
Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Posltive
Original Fina) Actual {Negative)
Revenues

Taxes $ 2,160,000 $2299251 $2293243 % {6,008)

Intergovernmental - 12,585 16,188 3,603

Charges for services 55,000 72,668 72,830 162

investment ravenue 450 1,021 1.022 1

Other 1,625 1,450 1,450 ~

Total Revenues 2,217,075 2,388,975 2,384,733 {2,242)
Expendituras
Current
General government 54,075 43,166 43,165 | 1
Public safety - 14,779 17,909 (3,130)
Culture and recreation 273,304 302,996 295,322 7674
Capital outiay 2,170 2,190 15,599 {13,409}
Total Expenditures 328,549 363,131 371,995 {(B,864)
Excess (Deficlency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 1,887,526 2,023,844 2012,738 (11,108)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers (out) _ (18410000  (1.844750)  (1,850,448) (5,868)
Net Change in Fund Balances 45,526 179,094 162,290 {16,804)
Fund Balarices, Beginning of Year 519,151 519,151% 518,151 -
Fund Balances, End of Year § 5656877 $ 698245 $ 681441 3 {16,804)
See independent auditor's report.
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City of Leesville, Louisiana

Public Safety Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2005
Schedule 3
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgetad Amounts Positive
Original Final Actusl {Nopative)
Revenues
Taxes $ 1000000 $ 1157874 § 1154869 § {3,005)
Intergovernmental 127,200 119,289 142,455 23,166
Charges for services - R,375 12,115 (21,260)
Investment revenue 500 1,045 1,045 -
Total Revenues 1,127,700 1,311,583 1,310,484 {1,099}
Expenditures
Current
Public safety 2,294 450 2,284,738 2,366,138 (81,400)
Capital outlay 105,800 16,815 680,134 (663,319)
Debt service
Principal 67,200 73,650 69,164 4 486
interest and other charges - - 4,489 (4,489)
Total Expsnditures 2 467,450 2,375,203 3,119,925 {744,722)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (1,339,750} (1,063,620) (1.809.441) (745,821}
Qther Financing Sources {(Usses)
Transfers in 1,340,000 1,121,000 1,121,000 -
Proceeds from capital debt - - 850,000 650,000
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses 1,340,000 1,121 000 1,771,000 550,000
Nst Change in Fund Balances 250 57,380 (38,441} {95,821}
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 240,194 240,194 240,194 -
Fund Balances, End of Year $ 240444 § 297574 § 201753 § (95,821)
See indepandent auditor's raport.
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City of Lessvilis, Louisiana

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended Jung 30, 2005

Schadule 4
Federal Grantor/ Federal
Pass-through Grantor CFDA Pass-through Award Amount
Program Title __Number Grant Number Amount Expended
U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Community Planning and Development
Passed-through the State of Lovisiana
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 592449 $ 225000 § 115946
U. 8. Department of Justice
Office of Juvenile Justice and Dalinquency Prevention
Passed-through the State of Louisiana
Juvenile Justice and Deiinquency Prevantion - Affocation to States 16.540 JO3-3-001 4,651 2818
Bureau of Justice Assistance
Passed-through the State of Louisiana
Byme Formula Grant Program 16.579 B04-3-015 12,000 8,027
Law Enforcement Block Grant program 18.592 Z04-3-012 3,150 3,150
Agency Totals 19,801 13,993
U. §. Department of Transportation
Fedsral Aviation Administration
Direct
Alrport improvement Program 20.106 550,000 536,485
National Highway Safety Administration
Passed-through the State of Louisiana
State and Community Highway Safety 20600 P3 05-14-07 3,506 1633
Agency Totais 553,508 538,008
U. 8. Department of Health and Human Services
Administration for Children and Families
Passed-ihrough BeauCARE, Inc.
Temporary Assistance for Needy Familles 83.558 19,800 16,188
U. 3. Department of Homeland Secyrity
Passed-through Vernon Parish Office of Homeland Security
State Homeland Security Program 97.073 16 559 16,559
Totals § 834865 $ 700,784

Notes;

All expenditures on the Schedule of Expenditures of Fedaral Awards are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Note 1 to the

financlal statements provides additional information relative to the City's accounting policies.

No federal funds wers awarded to subnacipients during the year endaed June 30, 2G05.

See independent auditor's report.
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Other Reports Reguired by
Government Auditing Standards
and OMB Circular A-133
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
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PAYNE, MOCRE & HERRINGTON, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCRUNTANTS

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Honorable Jim Shapkoff, Jr., Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Leesville, Louisiana

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Leesville, Louisiana, as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2005, which collectively comprise the City of Leesville’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 19, 2005. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptrolier General of the United States.

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Leesville's internat control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting.
However, we noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its
operation that we consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming
1o our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the intemal control over
financial reporting that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the City's ability to record, process,
summarize, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial
statements. The reportable conditions are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as Finding 2005-04 through Finding 2005-08.

A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or mare of the
internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low leve! the risk that misstatements caused
by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited
may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal contro! aver financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable conditions, and,
accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be
material weaknesses. However, of the reportable conditions described above, we consider Finding
2005-04 through Finding 2005-05 to be material weaknesses.
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PAYNE, MOORE & HERRINGTON, LLP

The Honorable Jim Shapkoff, Jr., Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Leesvitle, Louisiana

We aiso noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported
to the management of the City of Lessville, Louisiana, in a separate letter, entitled Other Comments
and Recommendations, dated December 19, 2005.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accerdingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards, which are descriced in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as Finding 2005-01 through Finding 2005-03.

This repart is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, members of the City Council,
management of the City of Leesville, Louisiana, federal awarding agencies, pass-through entities, and
the Legislative Auditor's office of the State of Louisiana. This report is not intended to be, and should

not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, under Louisiana Revised Stafute
24:513, this report is in fact a public document,

r
Pay'rw , Merwe & W) LLp
Certified Public Accountants

December 19, 2005
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Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to
Each Major Program and internal Control Over Compliance
in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133
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PAYNE, MOORE & HERRINGTON. LLP

CERTIFIED PygLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to
Each Major Program and Internal Control Over Compliance
in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

The Honorable Jim Shapkoff, Jr., Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Leesville, Louisiana

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Leesville, Louisiana, with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2005. The City’s
major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of management of the
City of Leesville, Louisiana. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Leesville,
Louisiana’s compliange with those requirements,

In our opinion, the City of Leesville, Louisiana, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2005.

MICHAEL &, Ionan, CRJ, 1410 MEve Imve « PO B02 13200 o ALEXANSRIA, (K 773053260

3
biss L i, CEA. @ PL (10 4431933 « FaX: (300) 443-2515  wwW_PMRCPA.CHM
tPat home, 04, 61

L, CRA
IR, Dvamie, CFA,
RENECCA 0. Monws, LP ).

Hagein b, Jowei, LR,
i frcn Tnomm, 14
ERwEst . Sasser, CIA.




PAYNE, MOORE & HERRINGTON, LLP

The Honorable Jim Shapkoff, Jr., Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Leesville, Louisiana

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City of Leesville, Louisiana, is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to federat programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal
contral over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on compliance and to test and report on the internal contro! over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition
in which the design or operation of one or more of the intemal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements caused by error or fraud that would be material in relation to a major
federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal
controi over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, members of the City Council,
management of the City of Leesville, Louisiana, federal awarding agencies, pass-through entities, and
the Legislative Auditor's office of the State of Louisiana. This report is not intended to be, and should

not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute
24:513, this report is in fact a public document.

foyne, Mot & Beningp., Lip

Certified Public Accountants

December 19, 2005
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City of Leesville, Louisiana
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Part | - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Unqualified

X Yes No

Reportable condition(s) identified not considered

to be material weaknesses?

X Yes None reported

Noncompliance material to the financial statements? X Yes No

Management’s Corrective Action Plan

Management's Summary Schedule of Prior

Audit Findings

Memorandum of Recommendations and
Other Comments

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified?
Reportable conditions identified

that are not considered to be
material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on
compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with section 510{a) of Circular A-1337?

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number
20.108

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

See Attached

See Attached

See Attached

Yes x No

Yes X__ None reported

Unqualified

Yes x_No

Name of Federal Program
Airport Improvement Program

$300,000

Yes x No
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City of Leesville, Louisiana
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Part Il - Findings Relating to the Financial Statements which are
Required to be Reported Under Government Auditing Standards

Finding 2005-01 Bond Indenture Compliance

Criteria: Various indentures for bonds require the City to establish and maintain sinking funds and, in
some cases, reserve and contingency funds; and specify that sinking funds, reserve funds, and
contingency funds be fully funded prior to using any remaining funds for other purposes.

Conditions:
General Obligation Bonds, Series 1995, of Sewer District No. 3 and General Obligation Bonds of
the City:
Funds were not transferred to the Sewer System Renewal and Replacement Fund in
accordance with Section 5.2 of the agreement. At year-end, cumulative additions to the reserve
fund were approximately $51,000 less than the amount required by the bond agreement.

Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds, Series 2005:
The indentures require the establishment of the Sales Tax Reserve Fund — 2005, by transferring
to the Reserve Fund, immediately upon delivery of the bonds from bond proceeds, a sum equal
to the combined maximum principal and interest requirements for any succeeding bond year on
the Qutstanding Parity Bonds and the Bonds. In accordance with this requirement, management
should have transferred $239,775 to the Reserve Fund from the bond proceeds. By year-end,
only $38,645 had been transferred to the Reserve Fund, leaving a deficit of $201,130.

Recommendation. We recommend that the City comply with the requirements of the indentures or
agreements for the various bonds. In addition, we recommend that the Sales Tax Reserve Fund - 2005
be fully funded from the remaining bond proceeds.

Management's Response. See Management's Corrective Action Plan.




City of Leesville, Louisiana
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2005
Finding 2005-02 Lack of Cooperative Endeavor Agreement

Criteria:  Article 7, Section 14(C) of the Louisiana Constitution allows cooperative endeavors for a
public purpose, such as programs of social welfare for the aid and support of the needy, between a
political subdivision such as the City and certain organizations.

Condition: The City is providing office space rent free to such an organization engaged in providing a
medication access program to certain needy individuals. There is no cooperative endeavor agreement
for this arrangement.

Recommendations: We recommend that the City and the organization enter into a cooperative
endeavor agreement to comply with constitutional requirements.

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan

Finding 2005-03 Alleged Theft of Funds
Condition: The City's existing internal controls detected unusual circumstances pertaining to certain
receipts during January and February 2005. Management referred the findings to the Chief of Police for
investigation. The investigation resulted in restitution of $13,421 by the former empioyee, The Vernon
Parish District Attorney and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor were notified. Certain additional
safeguards were instituted to prevent a repetition of the problem.

Recommendation. We recommend that management continue to enforce internal controls relating to
cash receipts.

Management's Response: See Management’'s Corrective Action Plan.

Finding 2005-04 Reconciliation of Occupationa! License Receipts

Criteria: The objectives of intemal controls are to provide management with reasonable assurance that
assets are safeguarded against loss and that transactions are executed in accordance with
management’s authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Condition: The client's listing of occupational license receipts from July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2005
shows a total of $232,656 collected; however, the amount of accupational license receipts deposited
from July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2005 totals only $214 960, which leaves an unreconciled difference
of $17,696. An additional test of occupational license receipts was performed on a random sample of
60 occupational licenses from a client provided list of sequential occupationa) license numbers. Of the
80 tested, 6 occupational licenses could not be accounted for in the receipts history.

Recommendation. We recommend that the subsidiary listing of occupation license receipts be
reconciled to the general ledger controt account monthly. We also recommend that management further
investigate the unreconciled difference, especially in relation to Finding 2005-03 above.

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan.
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City of Leesville, Louisiana
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Finding 2005-05 Recongiliation of Utility Accounts Receivable

Criteria: The objectives of internal controls are to provide management with reasonable assurance that
assets are safeguarded against loss and that transactions are executed in accordance with
management’s authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Condition: At year-end, the water and sewer accounts receivable subsidiary did not reconcile to the
general ledger control accounts by $1,234 and $28,828, respectively, primarily due to a software error
that posts certain receipts on account in the general ledger to a revenue account instead of the
accounts receivable control account.

>

Recommendation. We understand that management is working with the software vendor to correct the
error. We recommend that the correction be made as soon as feasible. Until the software is corrected
monthly manual journal entries should be made to correct the postings. In addition, we recommend that
any remaining differences be investigated and corrected. To facilitate the recongiliation, we recommend
that the accounts receivable subsidiary listing be printed on the last day of the month.

Management's Response: See Managemant's Corrective Action Plan.

Finding 2005-06 Purchasing Policies and Procedures

Criteria: The City has written accounts payabie policies and procedures outlining purchasing guidelines
which include approval of all invoices by a representative of the originating department prior to payment
either by a completed check request form or by signature on the actual invoice. A purchase requisition
is required for all purchases greater than $50. Purchase orders are issued for approved purchase
requisitions. Invoices must include an approved purchase order number. Invoices with no approved
purchase order are returned to the vendor.

Condition: In prior year Finding 2004-10Q, we reported that 19 of 40 disbursements selected for testing
for compliance with purchasing policies and procedures failed to comply with one or more of the above
requirements. In current year testing, we found that 5 of 40 disbursements selected for testing failed to
comply with one or more of the above requirements.

Recommendation: Although we understand that tremendous improvement has been made in this area,
we recommend that established purchasing policies and procedures be strictly enforced.

Management's Response: See Management’s Corrective Action Plan.
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City of Leesville, Louisiana
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Finding 2005-07 Filing and Retention of Supporting Documentation

Criteria: A filing system that ensures the retention and the subsequent location of supporting
documeniation of transactions is an integral part of internal controls.

Condition: In prior year Finding 2004-06, we reported that little or no supporting documentation was
availabie for certain receipfs and deposits. We are pleased to report that substantiai improvement has
been made in this area. However, in our sample of forty days, client personne! were unable to locate
utility stubs for one of the days selected for testing.

Recommendation: We continue to recommend that all receipts and deposits should be supported by
adequate documentation and that such documentation should be retained to ensure that transactions
are executed in accordance with management’s authorization and recorded propetly to permit the
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan.

Finding 2005-08 Controls Over Fuel Usage

Cniteria. Controis over gasoline pumps should be adequate to ensure that supporting documentation
for gasoline usage identifies the vehicle and pump meter readings. Such documentation should be
reviewed promptly for reasonableness.

Condition: The fuel machine that records the amount of fuel available and used has been broken since
March 2004. Estimated monthly fuel usages were charged to the various city departments during the
year ended June 30, 2005. We understand that, subsequent to June 30, 2005, the equipment was
replaced and that actual fuel usages are now available.

Recommendation: We continue to recommend that back up procedures be established in case of future
equipment failure to provide management with reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss and that transactions are executed in accordance with management’s authorization and
recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.
Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan.

Part lll - Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards

None reported.
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Other Comments and Recommendations
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PAYNE, MOORE & HERRINGTON, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCRUNTAXIS

Other Comments and Recommendations

The Honorable Jim Shapkoff, Jr., Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Leesville, Louisiana

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financiai statements of the City of Leesville, Louisiana,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, we considered the City's internal controls to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements and not to
provide assurance on the internal controls.

However, during our audit we became aware of matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal
controls, operating efficiency, and compiiance. The memorandum that accompanies this letter
summarizes our comments and suggestions regarding those matters. A separate report, dated
December 19, 2005, contains our report on reportable conditions on the City’s internal control. This
letter does not affect our report, dated December 19, 2005, on the basic financial statements of the City
of Leesville, Louisiana,

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already

discussed many of these comments and suggestions with management personnel, and we will be
pleased to discuss them in detail at your convenience.

Fogre, more & Mewiyln, Lip

Certified Public Accountants

December 19, 2005
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Memorandum of Other Comments and Recommendations

Finding 2005-09 Late Payment of Pavroll Taxes and Other Disbursements

Criteria: Payroll taxes and other disbursements should be paid timely to avoid penalty and interest
charges for fate payment.

Condition: In prior year Finding 2004-15, we reported that the City paid in excess of $38,000 for
penalty and interest on late payment of payroll taxes for the year ending June 30, 2004. We aiso noted
that many invoices were paid late resulting in additional late charges. For the year ended June 30,
2005, we noted that penalties and interest for the late payment of payroll taxes totaled 35,515, as
substantial improvement over the prior year. We continued to note late payment of invoices. As of June
30, 2005, general tiability insurance premiums, for the period May 1, 2005 through May 1, 2006, in the
amount of $120,021 were unpaid. Management informed us that a substantial amount of the general
liability insurance premiums were paid in December 2005.

Recommendation: We continue to recommend that payroll taxes and other disbursements be paid
timely to avoid penalty and interest charges for late payment. Management should also utilize monthly
budgets as a tool to manage the various departments and control spending to ensure that cash flows
are adequate to meet obligations incurred.

Management's Response. See Management's Carrective Action Plan.
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Management’'s Corrective Action Plan
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City of Leesville, Louisiana
Management’s Corrective Action Plan
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Sectionl:

Internal Control and Compllance Material to the Financial Statements

Bond Indenture Compliance

Finding 2005-01

Response Subsequent to year-end, the City transferred $239,775 to the Sales Tax Reserve
Fund to fully fund the reserve fund in accordance with the bond requirements.
The City will strive to fund the Sewer System Renewal and Replacement Fund in
accordance with the bond agreement.

Flnd'lng 2005-02 Lack of Co rative endeavor reament

Response The City is working on adopting a cooperative endeavor agreement with the
agency that will comply with state law.

Finding 2005-03 Alleged Theft of Funds

Response The City has added additional internal control procedures to prevent a repetition
of the problem. In addition, management is closely monitoring controls relating to
cash receipts.

Finding 2005-04 Recongiliation of Ogcupational License Receipts

Response The City is working with our software vendor to improve occupational license
reports. Occupational license receipts will be reconciled to the general ledger
monthly. .

Finding 2005-05 Reconciliation of Utility Accounts Receivable

Response The City is continuing to work with our software vendor to correct this problem.

Finding 2005-08

Purchasing Policies and Procedures

Response Purchasing policies and procedures are being enforced. The auditors noted that
we have made tremendous improvements in this area in the past year. We are
continuing to make additional improvements.

Finding 2005-07 Filing and Retention of Supporting Documentation

Response The City implemented new procedures during the year that encompasses the
filing of supporting documentation that required supporting documentation to be
attached to all receipts and/or deposits. The incident referred to in the Finding
occurred before implementation of the procedures.

Flndlng 2005-08 Confrols over Fuel Usage

Response Subsequent to year-end, the City installed a new fuel system. The City is working

with the vendor to make the system operational. The system, once operational,
wilt provide the information necessary to record fuel expenses by department.
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City of Leesville, Louisiana
Management's Corrective Action Plan
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Section Ii;
Other Comments and Recommendations
(Management Letter)

| Finding 2005-09

Response

Late Payment of Payroll Taxes and Other Disbursements

Additional revenue sources such as the new sales tax for the police and fire
departments have improved cash flow, which will reduce the amount of
penalties and interest paid. The City will continue to utilize monthly budgets
as a tool to control spending to ensure cash flows are adequate to meet
obligations incurred.
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Management's Schedule of Prior Year Findings
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City of Leesville, Louisiana
Management’s Schedule of Prior Year Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2005
Section I:
Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements
Finding Description Status
Finding 2004-01 Bond Indenture Compliance Partially resolved

See Finding 2005-01

Finding 2004-02

Personal Use of Cell Phones

Resolved

Finding 2004-03 | Collection of Delinquent Customer Utility Accounts Resolved
Finding 2004-04 | Compliance with Louisiana Bid Law Resolved
Finding 2004-05 | Approval for Incurrence of Debt Resolved
Finding 2004-06 | Compliance with Code of Ethics Resolved
Finding 2004-07 | Late Filing of Audit Report Resolved
Finding 2004-08 | Reporting Detectives’ Clothing Allowance Resolved
Finding 2004-09 Recongiliation of Utility Accounts Receivable Partially resolved
See Finding 2005-05

Finding 2004-10

Purchasing Poalicies and Procedures

Partially resolved
See Finding 2005-06

Finding 2004-11

Filing and Retention of Supporting Documentation

Partially resolved
See Finding 2005-07

Finding 2004-12

Controls Over Fuel Usage

Partially resolved
See Finding 2005-08

Finding 2004-13

Accounting for DOTD Loan Proceeds

Resoived

Finding 2004-14

Controls Over Capital Assets

Resolved

Finding 2004-15

Late Payment of Payroll Taxes and Other Disbursements

Partially resolved
See Finding 2005-09

Section I
Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards

[ None reported. [
Section lll:
Other Comments and Recommendations
(Management Letter)
2005-16 Old Qutstanding checks Resolved.
2005-17 Controls Over Blank Checks Resolved.
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